ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT COW TTEE ON LEGQ SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T
Anchor age, Al aska
July 9, 2003
3:10 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Chair

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representative Vic Kohring (via tel econference)
Representative Jim Witaker (via tel econference)
Representative Beth Kerttula (via tel econference)

Senator CGene Therriault, Vice Chair (via tel econference)
Senat or Ben Stevens

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Reggie Joule, alternate
Representative Bill WIllians, alternate

Senat or Con Bunde
Senator Lyda Green, alternate

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Les Gara
Representative Bob Lynn

COW TTEE CALENDAR

APPROVAL OF M NUTES

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

AUDI T REPORTS

REVI SED PROGRAM - LEG SLATI VE ( RPLS)
OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

AUDI T REQUESTS

W TNESS REG STER
CHERYL FRASCA, Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget (QvB)
O fice of the Governor

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -1- July 9, 2003



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the RPLs to the Joint Commttee
on Legi sl ative Budget and Audit.

Bl LL ROLFZEN

St ate Revenue Sharing

Muni ci pal Assi stance, National

Forest Receipts, Fish Tax, PILT

D vision of Community & Business Devel opnent

Departnent of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information and answered
guestions pertaining to RPL 08-4-0019, Tenporary Tax Relief
Paynments - DCED.

DAVI D TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst

Legi sl ative Finance Division

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered comments pertaining to RPL 08-4-
0019, Tenporary Tax Relief Paynents - DCED.

JEFFREY S. GRAHAM Forester |11

Forest Stewardshi p Coordi nator

Di vision of Forestry

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided information pertinent to RLP 10-4-
5002, Di anond Creek - Forest Legacy G ant Land Acquisition.

ARLI SS STURGELEWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information regarding RLP 10-4-
5002, Di anond Creek - Forest Legacy G ant Land Acquisition.

DONNA LOGAN, Seni or Manager

McDowel | Group

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the Al aska State
Vet erans Hone Feasibility Study to the conmttee.

JOHN VOVWELL, Director

Di vision of Al aska Longevity Prograns

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information relevant to the Al aska
State Veterans Honme Feasibility Study.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 2- July 9, 2003



PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the special audit requests and
the request for approval for | ease space to the conmttee.

SALLY HUNTLEY, Owner and Manager

Frontier Travel, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on the special audit request
regardi ng travel procurenent process.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-5, SIDE A
[ The counter nunbers reflect tinme el apsed.]

CHAIR RALPH SAMUELS called the Joint Conmittee on Legislative
Budget and Audit neeting to order at 3:10 p.m Menbers present
at the call to order were Representatives Sanuels and Hawker
and Senators Ben Stevens and W /I ken; Representatives Kohring,

Wit aker, Kerttula and Senator Therriault were on line via
tel econference. Senator Hoffrman joined the neeting as it was in
pr ogr ess. Also present were Representatives Cissna, Gara, and
Lynn.

APPROVAL OF M NUTES

0.6

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nmade a notion to approve the mnutes of
April 29, 2003. There being no objection, the mnutes fromthe
neeting of April 29, 2003, were approved as read.

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

1.2

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nmade a notion to nove to executive session
for the purpose of discussing confidential audit reports under
AS 24.20.301. There being no objection, the commttee went into

executi ve sessi on.

CHAI R SAMUELS brought the conmttee back to regular open session
at approximately 3:30 p. m

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 3- July 9, 2003



AUDI T REPORTS
1.6

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER nmade a notion for the prelimnary
statewi de single audit, audit control nunber 0240003-03, to be
rel eased to the appropriate agencies for response. There being
no objections, the audit was rel eased for response.

REVI SED PROGRAM - LEQ SLATI VE ( RPLS)
2.0

CHERYL FRASCA, Director, Ofice of Managenent & Budget (QOVB),
Ofice of the Governor, began her testinmony by referring to the
first two RPLs, which were a result of Congress's approval of
the President's fiscal relief package to the states. I n that
package, Alaska will receive $50 mllion. The state received
$25 mllion in July, and the remaining $25 nillion wll be
received in October of federal fiscal vyear (FY) 04. The
proposal for the first $25 million includes the distribution of
$10 mllion in a Ceneral Relief Assistance Program that would
provide 10 nonths of paynment, $120 per nonth, to those who are
eligible, which is estimated to be 7,500 individuals. Thi s
relief wll be provided for all [qualifying] seniors over the
age of 65, not just those who have been receiving the |ongevity
bonus.

4.4

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER noved that the commttee approve RPL 06-4-
0028, Tenporary Tax Relief Paynents, Health and Social Services.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked what other states are doing with the tax
relief dollars that are being received.

MS. FRASCA responded that the information as to how other states
are using those dollars wasn't avail able. However, she noted
that the states were given broad latitude regarding how the
nonies were to be used. Al t hough the governor had to indicate
that the nonies would be used for an essential state service of
a type in the appropriation process, there is very wde
| atit ude. This latitude is unlike nost federal funds that are
tied to a certain purpose, she said.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -4- July 9, 2003



CHAIR SAMUELS asked whether there were any objections to the
notion. There being none, it was so ordered.

5.6

M5. FRASCA continued with the second RPL, RPL 08-4-0019, which
takes $15 mllion of the $25 mllion and distributes it to |ocal
comunities based on a fornula simlar to revenue sharing. The
[difference] is that the mninum anount of entitlenment to a
municipality wll be $40,000, conpared with the approxinmately
hal f of that which has been customarily received through revenue

sharing in recent years. Because "we vetoed the noney" in the
two prograns, Safe Communities and the State's Revenue Sharing
Program this wll provide transitional finding because FY 05
funding won't include proposals of funding those prograns,
ei t her. The RPL includes a spreadsheet that shows the anounts

to be received by each conmmunity.
6.7

SENATOR WLKEN directed attention to page 1 of the [attachnent
to RPL 08-4-0019], wherein it indicates that of the $15 million
in available federal funding, $3,500 will be given to each of
[ 73] wunincorporated conmunities, which anounts to [$255, 500]
from the $15 mllion. Al so, [$13,857] will be given to 21
volunteer fire departnments, which leaves [$14.7] nillion to
al l ocate anong all of the comrunities. He then referred to the
| ast [columm on the attachnment] and asked where the anount of
$40, 000 cane from

M5. FRASCA replied that $40,000 was a target anount. Because
the Capital WMtching Gants Program was also vetoed, the
guestion was asked, "Wat's a reasonable nunber if we took what
they m ght have gotten under Revenue Sharing, Safe Communities,
and the Capital Matching Gants Entitlenent?"

SENATOR W LKEN surm sed, "So that's an arbitrary nunber."
MS. FRASCA replied, "Yes, that's another word for it."

SENATOR W LKEN then referred to |ast page of the spreadsheet,
noting that he didn't understand columms four, five, and siXx.

BILL ROLFZEN, State Revenue Sharing, Minicipal Assistance,
Nat i onal , Forest Receipts, Fish Tax, PILT, D vision of Comunity
& Business Devel opnent, Departnent of Community & Economc
Devel opnent answered that [colum four], "Anount Under M ninmm"

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 5- July 9, 2003



[was based on the assunption] that every conmunity woul d receive

$40, 000. [Colum three], "Straight Percentage Allocation,”
speci fies what each community would receive based upon what was
received in FY 03. Wien the $40,000 that every conmunity

receives is taken into account, the anount under the m ninum
anount can be determ ned, and therefore the anmpunt necessary to
total $40,000 is apparent. Communi ties under $40,000 will be
gi ven noney. In [colum five] the "Mn. Allocation WMke-up
Contributor” is the amount that is over the $40,000. Each
municipality that 1is over $40,000, based on its [straight
al l ocation] percentage from last year, has to contribute sone
noney, which is then subtracted from the comunity's tota

entitlenent.

10. 4

SENATOR W LKEN referred to colum four and asked if the anount
of $2.9 mllion, contributed by those having nore than $40, 000,
was then being spread anpbngst those who would be under $40, 000,
in order to bring those communities up to $40, 000.

MR. ROLFZEN confirnmed this was correct.

SENATOR W LKEN referred to [the attachnent] in which the $35, 853
anount in colum one for Adak is about 0.12 percent [of FY 03].
If the 0.12 percent anmount was taken, Adak woul d have a straight
percentage allocation of about $18,000. He related his
under st andi ng that Adak woul d be about $21,900 under the $40, 000
anount, and therefore would be underfunded, according to this
pl an.

SENATOR WLKEN then referred to Fairbanks, which received $1.3
mllion, or about 4.7 percent [of FY 03], and if a straight
all ocation was done based on FY 03, Fairbanks would receive
[ $659,336]. Since that's over $40,000, according to columm siXx,
Fai rbanks is contributing [$172,240] back into the pot; he asked
if this was correct.

12.0
MR. ROLFZEN replied, "Yes." However, he highlighted that it's

inmportant to look at the big picture and consider that if
revenue sharing were funded, there would be a mninmm

entitlenment, and Adak would then receive $18, 000. The m ni num
for that programis about $25,000 tinmes the COLA [Cost of Living
Al | owance] . Therefore, looking at it as a straight percentage

is somewhat msleading because Adak wouldn't have received

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 6- July 9, 2003



$18,000 this year in revenue sharing. The noney woul d have j ust
been put in that program because that program has a m ni mum

SENATOR W LKEN par aphrased his understanding as follows, "Adak,
under this '04 schene, is receiving nore than it normally would
have gotten under the $25,000 plan, while Fairbanks is getting
| ess than they would have, [as are] other large communities. Am
| reading that right?"

MR. ROLFZEN answered that if the capital matching grants, which
were also vetoed, are included, then every comunity |oses
noney. He explained that if the $35,853 that [Adak] received in
FY 03 under Revenue Sharing and Safe Conmunities is added to
that other $25,000 received under capital matching grants, that
woul d total about $70,000, and therefore Adak woul d be funded at
$40, 000.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if a |like amount would apply to Fairbanks,
begi nning with the anmount of $1.39 mllion.

MR. ROLFZEN clarified, "You would have to add the capital
mat chi ng grant.”

SENATOR W LKEN asked if what was done for Adak would also be
done for Fairbanks.

MR. ROLFZEN said the bottom line is that every comunity would
show a reducti on.

SENATOR W LKEN asked, "Why are the big conmunities contributing
noney in order to nake the small communities either whole or
greater than whole from' 03?"

13.9
M5. FRASCA explained that in allocating this one-tinme noney, the

revenue-sharing fornmula was chosen because it tended to weight
distribution of the nonies based on services provided. The Safe

Communities program by contrast, is of benefit to |I|arger
comunities, by population. She said [this proposal] is a
hybrid that tries to accommpbdate some connection to services
delivered in using the Revenue Sharing Program She

acknow edged that it is not perfect and noted that |arger
comunities have nore of a capacity to nmake up for sone of the
| ost revenue than do the smaller conmunities.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -7- July 9, 2003



CHAIR SAMUELS asked whether in total, every conmmunity took a
"hit" when taking into consideration the Capital Matching G ants
and Safe Communities prograns.

MS. FRASCA confirmed that, saying, "Yes, there is a cost."”
15.2

MR. ROLFZEN, in response to Senator W/ ken, said that under the
Capi t al Matching Grants program every nunicipality and
uni ncorporated community receives, at a mninum a $25,000
capital-matching grant. For exanpl e, the unincorporated
comrunities that are scheduled to receive $3,500 are al so | osing
their $25,000 capital-matching grant.

SENATOR W LKEN nentioned this being some arbitrary schene that
asks the big communities to contribute [approximtely] $3
mllion in order to bring other conmunities to $40,000. He said
he didn't know why and didn't agree with the arbitrary selected
amount of $40, 000. He said he was ok "as long as everybody is
being treated equally, but we're not." Smaller communities are
benefiting while larger communities are not. He said he didn't
understand this rationale and could not support this. He asked
that the committee consider $25,000 or else allocate according
to colum three so that everybody would be treated equally.

18.0

SENATOR HOFFMAN offered that the smaller conmmunities are very
dependent on a program that is going away. He told the
commttee that he already has one community that is |ooking at
dissolution and in many cases, elimnation of this program
accounts for 60-80 percent of the funds used to operate the
| ocal governnent. Fai rbanks can’t simlarly say, wth the
elimnation of this program that 80 percent of its operation
dollars are going away. That, he said, is the nobst significant
factor in the elimnation of this program [which he predicted
would result in] small comunities' disbanding and going wth

tribal governnents. These communities are dependent on the
mnimal amount of state aid that is received. Gover nor
Mur kowski is presenting sonmething that is at least fair, he
sai d.
20.5

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 8- July 9, 2003



CHAIR SAMJELS asked if any comunity would be considered a
"winner," given the $40,000 mnimm and the conbination of
mat chi ng grants.

M5. FRASCA confirnmed that if the prograns from FY 03 Revenue
Sharing, Safe Community, and Capital Matching grants were
conbi ned, the anmount would have been greater than $40,000 for
any one nunicipality.

21.3

SENATOR W LKEN noved that the allocations for the appropriations
be done according to Straight Percentage Allocation as shown
under colum three [of the attachnment].

SENATOR HOFFMAN obj ect ed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if it was possible to allocate
according to the nethodology used in determning the third
col um.

M5. FRASCA deferred to M. Rolfzen, asking if there is noney in
addition to the $14.7 nmllion that gets paid out of the $15
mllion, since "this is just nunicipalities.”

MR. ROLFZEN responded that the $14.7 mllion pertains only to
municipalities and the $3,500 pertains to unincorporated
comunities.

M5. FRASCA asked if <colum three, the Straight Percentage
Al l ocation, could be used to neet the allocations spread anong
communities, plus the other obligations under simlar revenue
sharing arrangenents, under the $15 million total.

MR ROLFZEN said, "Yes, we could because colum three also
totals $14.73 million."

SENATOR THERRI AULT then asked about the 21 volunteer fire
departnments and referred to the Fairbanks Northstar Borough and
wondered whether it received noney from another part of the
formula, since it is an organi zed borough.

M5. FRASCA replied that Fairbanks's allocation as a nunicipality
includes fire services rei mbursenent, through a fornula.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 9- July 9, 2003



MR. ROLFZEN said that wunder the Revenue Sharing program the
Fai rbanks fire service areas would receive a portion of the
revenue- shari ng paynent.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS inquired about an anticipated plan to
distribute the $25 mllion in Cctober.

MS. FRASCA replied that a plan has not as yet been formul ated.
24.7

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if this chart could be reviewed at a
| ater date using a different nethodol ogy of allocation.

M5. FRASCA said there has been no discussion or plan for the
second installnent, and therefore everything was available for
di scussi on.

SENATOR HOFFMAN told the committee that he thought that both
Representatives Mrgan and Foster would be displeased with the
passage of the notion because [the smaller] conmmunities [in
their districts] would be hit the hardest, whereas the |arger
communities could make it through the transition easier.

26. 7

DAVID TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst, Legislative Finance
Division, Al aska State Legislature, inforned the conmittee that
energency regulations have been witten to distribute this
noney. If a nodification to the formula is suggested, he
wondered whether there would be a need for new regul ations, or
whet her there would be a del ay.

MR. ROLFZEN responded that the regulations specified a dollar
anount, including the mnimal entitlenment anmount of $40, 000.
The proposed fornmula is set out in the regulations, which had
been adopted several weeks ago, and therefore are currently in
ef fect.

SENATOR W LKEN said that he hoped that regulations would never
prevent equal treatnent from occurring.

MR. TEAL said that if regulations were in effect, the Joint
Comm ttee on Legislative Budget and Audit could sinply place the
noney in the appropriation in this conponent, thereby giving the
executive branch the right to spend the nobney any way it so
chooses. Furthernmore, if regulations currently exist, nothing

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -10- July 9, 2003



prevents starting over with the regulations and saying, "W've
got a new formula.” However, the latter brings up questions
regarding where the executive-and-legislative line is drawn
[Wwth regard to] the [nmethod used] to distribute the noney,
which is a | egal question.

M5. FRASCA said if the committee decides on $25,6000, then the
| egislature's intent would be followed. The goal was for the
checks to go out in late July, which is customarily when
revenue-sharing checks are [distributed].

29.8

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER reiterated that the notion before the
commttee was to approve of a distribution based on colum
three, the Straight Percentage Allocation. He asked, if that
notion was passed, and if the RPL was approved, as anended,
whet her there would be any legal authority to that, or whether
it would fall back to an admnistrative decision, which could
t hen go back to whatever al l ocati on per cent ages [the
adm ni stration] chooses to enact.

MS. FRASCA responded that unless it is precluded by sone |egal
reason, what the legislative conmttee decides upon is what wll
be done.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER confirmed that his concerns were put to
rest because "Ms. Frasca was good to her word,"” and said that
al though Senator WIlken's argunent s convincing, Senat or
Hof f man presented an equally valid consideration. He said he
wasn't confortable with the $40,000 floor and that perhaps a
$25,000 floor would be a nore appropriate factor, or perhaps
with a straight allocation, sone communities would cone in under
t he $25, 000. He stated his interest in splitting the issue and
wondered if using the $25,000 floor ... [tape ends].

TAPE 03-5, SIDE B
0.0

SENATOR WLKEN said the problem is that there's nothing nagic
about $25,000 either. He said the governor did his vetoes and
said, "Folks, the rules are changing the way we're doing
gover nment . And he did what he did. That left everybody
hangi ng. Senator Hoffman is exactly right. | understand that
argunent." Senator W I ken pointed out that he represents people
who will be asked to conme up with another $420,000 either in
revenue or in reductions to the budget, and that is really the

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -11- July 9, 2003



guestion before the commttee. He explained that his notion
speaks to allocating funds across the board, taking into account
what happened previously, all the way back to 1978. He said he
suspects that the sanme allocation discussion wll arise this
year and next, [even] with the additional nonies. He summarized
by saying, "Take the gift and allocate it according to what's
been ratified by this l|egislature, year after year, and not by
sone arbitrary nunber that takes the people who are paying taxes
and subsidizes those who aren't or who may not be. That's why |
woul d speak agai nst the $25, 000."

2.0

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to the first colum, with the FY 03
dollar amount, and asked if that anount took into account the
m ni num $25, 000 t hreshol d when the FY 03 checks were cut.

M5. FRASCA said she didn't believe there was enough noney in the
di stribution to pay the $25,000 m ni mrum

SENATOR THERRI AULT clarified that he was asking about FY 03,
when the current distribution statute would have been foll owed.
He asked if this would have included the $25,000 m ninmum
t hreshol d.

MR. ROLFZEN explained although that was true under revenue
sharing, [revenue sharing] was subject to a reduction because it
was so underfunded; the average mnimal entitlement was nore in
t he nei ghborhood of $20, 000.

SENATOR THERRI AULT then asked if the FY 03 nunber includes "a
bit of a bunp for the smaller communities.”

MR. ROLFZEN confirned that this was correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked, if the cal cul ated percentage was al so
used for FY 04 funding, whether it would simlarly include "a
bit of a bunp for those comunities.”

MR. ROLFZEN confirnmed this to be correct.

3.5

REPRESENTATI VE WHI TAKER comrented that it was difficult to argue
agai nst an equal allocation based upon a previous allocation.

He said he totally supports Senator WI ken's proposal and woul d
argue against altering it.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -12- July 9, 2003



MR. ROLFZEN, in response to Senator Ben Stevens, specified that
what is currently in regulation is the final colum, the "Fina
Al l ocation colum."

SENATOR BEN STEVENS inquired as to how the FY 03 distribution,
approved by the |l egislature, was derived.

MR. ROLFZEN explained that when the |egislature appropriated
noney for FY 03, it put the noney into the existing prograns,
Revenue Sharing and Safe Conmunities, which incorporate mnim
entitlenents and so on. He continued, saying that in FY 083,
distributing a percentage of an existing amount of noney, rather
than funneling it through existing programstatute ..

SENATOR BEN STEVENS interjected and asked about a hypotheti cal
situation in FY 03 wondering, if the anpbunt at the bottom of
columm one were changed to $20 mllion, whet her  those
percentages in colum two would renmain the sanme or woul d change,
based on the fornula.

MR. ROLFZEN replied that if nore noney were added to the fornula
on the spreadsheet, each community's percentage would remain the
sane, but the paynent would increase as the overal
appropriation increased.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS reiterated his question.

MR. ROLFZEN replied that it would depend on where the $20
mllion was placed. If it was placed in the Revenue Sharing
program the percentages would go up significantly. Adak, for
exanple, as a smaller comunity, would be eligible for that
$25,000 minimum so its paynment or allocation would be greater
than what is shown in colum three. He restated that it depends
on "where you put the noney."

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said the argunent 1is based on the
percentages in colum two, as conpared with the percentages in
col um seven. If the noney went into the same prograns, the
State Revenue Sharing and Safe Community progranms, he asked
whet her that woul d change t he percentages.

MR. ROLFZEN said, "Yes, it would."
CHAI R SAMJELS said it depends on the minimum [The comunities'

allocations] wll all change slightly, depending on the m ninm
and on what programis being used.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -13- July 9, 2003



SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he was trying to justify Senator
Wl ken's position versus Senator Hoffman's position, versus how
this would affect his community.

CHAIR SAMIELS clarified that the approach was to consider three
separate prograns and "eyeball sonmething in the mddle."

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked, if the nonies being considered had
changed and been reduced, whether it could have been reduced on
an equitable basis, or whether the percentages for the |arger
comuni ties woul d have fallen.

M5. FRASCA said the problem with the revenue-sharing fornula is
that "it's not just purely a math equation”™ because it's
wei ghted according to certain services and consideration is
given to smaller comrunities. She said that the percentage for
FY 03 is nerely Adak's percentage of the total anount avail able.

MR. ROLFZEN said that fromFY 03 to FY 04 there was a 25 percent

reduction approved by the |legislature. Anchor age's reduction
fromFY 03 to FY 04 would have been nore in the nei ghborhood of
29 to 30 percent. The smaller comunities, because of the
mninmal entitlenment and so forth, would have a reduction that is
less than that - it would have been under 25 percent in many
i nst ances.

12.3

SENATOR W LKEN echoed his earlier conmments that where the nobney
cane fromis irrelevant [because it should be shared equitably],
whi ch, he said, is his notion

SENATOR THERRI AULT said it seens fromthe testinony that's been
given that as the pot of noney has been reduced, the smaller
communities have been treated favorably and have received a

premum all the way up to FY 083. Now, if the calculation is
just a straight percentage on the FY 03 funding and all those
premuns factor into that per cent age, then the smaller
communities will continue to get the premum that's been built
up over the years and it will be applied to the current pot of
noney. Furthernore, the smaller comunities would still receive
a premum if the second colum percentage were used to cone up
with a straight allocation. He said, "And if that's not
correct, I'd like clarification."

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -14- July 9, 2003



SENATOR HOFFMAN told the commttee that he doesn't believe the
comunities are receiving a premum because there are two

separate formnul as. The percentages are a hybrid of a dollar
anount and two fornulas that have been nelded together. He
sai d:

If you big communities want to go ahead and steal the
noney from the small comunities, go ahead and do it.
But if you want to be fair about it, be fair and
equitable, then take the noney and distribute it under
t he Revenue Sharing Program a portion of it, and take
another portion and distribute it wunder the Safe
Communi ties Program Those formulas, we know what
they are. The legislature has adopted them And
let's take the dollars and distribute the nonies
equal |y under those two prograns.

SENATOR HOFFMAN stated that the percentage columm was a hybrid
of sonething that had not been seen before, and asked if there
was any basis to the percentages that existed in colum two,
according to | aw

M5. FRASCA confirnmed that the basis wasn't statutory but that it
is distributed as per |aw.

SENATOR HOFFMAN commented that it was distributed according to
t hose two formul as.

17.9

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated that "the issue before us is howto
allocate" a gift that is replacing prograns that no |onger
exist. He asked, "What if we went back and took this noney and
redistributed it under the absolute guidance of those previous
pr ogr ans?" He said that those prograns are not funded and do
not exist and that this is noney coning fromthe Federal Tax Act
- noney that "none of us ever expected to have." Representative
Hawker said he's conme full circle in supporting Senator WI ken's
presunption on this. Since the program isn't being reinstated
and the commttee is looking for a benchmark and a basis to
allocate the noney received, he suggested that an absolutely
ratabl e allocation in proportion to the prior years' receipts is
a fair solution and that, ultimately, Senator WI ken has a very
sound point.

19.9

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -15- July 9, 2003



CHAIR SAMUELS comrented that these are one-tine nonies, and
whet her one likes or dislikes the way the governnents are set up

in rural Alaska, it will be far nore difficult to "ranp them
down, " although that will ultimately be the case because this is
a one-time shot. He noted that there are many ways that the

admnistration could look at this, for exanple, splitting it
into three pots for three prograns.

20. 8

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA acknow edged that dealing with this one-
time noney was a difficult decision for the adm nistration. She
stated that Senator Hoffman is correct. She said that if the
desire is to treat communities equally, a lot nore would have to
be done; the smaller conmmunities don't have water, sewage,
electricity, or the infrastructure of the larger comunities.
Wth regard to treating everybody equally, she said "we haven't
been doing that for a long tinme." Therefore, she suggested that
[the legislature] needs to determne how it's going to treat
those communities nore equally in the future in order for them
to survive.

22.2

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Hawker, Wit aker
and Kohring and Senators Ben Stevens, WIken, and Therriault
voted in favor of the notion [to use the Straight Percentage
Al'location as shown in the attachment to RPL 08-4-0019].
Senator Hoffrman and Representatives Kerttula and Sanuels voted
against it. Therefore, the notion passed by a vote of 6-3.

23.0

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved the approval of RPL 08-4-0019,
Tenporary Tax Relief Paynments - DCED, as anended by the prior
notion. There being no objection, the notion carried.

CHAlI R SAMUELS announced that the next order of business woul d be
[RPL 10-4-5001] Alpine Satellite Project - ConocoPhillips
Al aska, Inc.

M5. FRASCA explained that this project was approved as part of
the FY 04 operating budget in terns of statutory designated
program recei pts in which ConocoPhillips Al aska, Inc., pays the
state for woirk that's being done on the Alpine Satellite
Proj ect . In the budget, $149,700 was approved, which was the
best estimate at the tinme as to what the costs would be. The

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -16- July 9, 2003



Menor andum of Understanding (MOU) wth the departnent and
ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc. has since been finalized and an
addi tional $76,600 is being requested.

24.5

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved to adopt RPL 10-4-5001, the Al pine-
Satellite Project - ConocoPhillips Al aska, Inc. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

CHAI R SAMUELS announced that the next order of business would be
[RPL 10-4-5002] D anond Creek - Forest Legacy Gant Land
Acqui si tion.

M5. FRASCA explained that this was a request to receive $450, 000
in federal funds as part of the Forest Legacy Gant Land

Acqui sition program She noted that there is a lot of
constituent support for the purchase of this land in the Honer
ar ea. She said that this was approved in the capital budget,

and "we all did veto it" and, upon reflection, are bringing it
back to the conmttee for approval

25.6

SENATOR W LKEN noted that the property, sone 160 acres, would be
going out of private ownership, out of the tax base, and into
public status, off of the tax base, in order to have a trail
through it. The trail, he recognized, was needed for recreation
purposes and for the Arctic Wnter Ganes. He asked why a trai
easenment wouldn't be a preferable approach rather than taking
the [l and] out of private ownership.

26. 8

JEFFREY S. GRAHAM Forester 111, Forest Stewardship Coordinator,
Division of Forestry, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR),
testified that the owner of the land intends to sell it and
needs the income from the property. He said he hasn't spoken

with the owner directly, but wunderstands that an easenent
woul dn't be sufficient for the owner.

SENATOR W LKEN asked about the configuration and wondered where
the trail was | ocated within the 160 acres.

MR. GRAHAM said he did not have the specific location of the

trail on his map. He said the area was adjacent to and
surrounded on two sides by a piece of state land called the

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -17- July 9, 2003



Honmer Denonstration Forest that has a nunber of ski and hiking
trails, which connect with the trails on this particular parcel.

SENATOR W LKEN expressed concern over taking |land out of private
ownership and putting it into public ownership. Senator W/ ken
informed the commttee that |ast week an issue was brought to
his attention in Fairbanks regarding the purchasing and

procurenent nmethods used by Arctic Wnter Ganes, Inc. He
expressed concerns about how Arctic Wnter Ganes, Inc., 1is
spendi ng noney, specifically regarding keeping noney in the
state. He has requested their bid and procurenent procedures,

in witing, but "they seemnot to have any."
29.8

ARLI SS STURGELEWSKI, a former Senator with the Alaska State
Legislature, testified that she wanted to make it very clear
that she does not represent the Arctic Wnter Ganes, Inc. She
said that she was the original sponsor of the land trust
regul ations or | egislation. There are sone very active trusts,
such as Kachemak Bay, Land Heritage Trust, and the Geat Land
Trust. There is a willing buyer and a willing seller, and these
uni que properties are of value to community use. For instance,
the Fish Creek Estuary in the Anchorage area is |ocated near the

Tony Know es Trail; it's a very special area. The group worked
to get private and foundation funding, et cetera, to keep the
area, which has a tremendous waterfall and view ng area. She
said that this legislation does not allow for em nent donain, so
it involves a wlling buyer, a willing seller, and there has to
be comunity support or, "it's just not going to go."™ How the

W nter ganes works, is another [question]....

TAPE 03-6, SIDE A
0.0

SENATOR W LKEN said, "They have certainly been put on record
that they need to develop and inprove their purchasing process,
and the legislature will hear nore about that."

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA commented that her husband, Jim Powel |,
is on the board of the Arctic Wnter Ganes.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS offered that he had previous experience
running a procurenment program on a wi nter games enterprise and
said that under state law, recipients need to follow the state
procurenent code; otherw se, the grant is being violated.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 18- July 9, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER echoed the concern expressed by Senator
Wl ken regarding the transfer of land from private to public
dormai n; however, he said that the circunstances in this case
justify this as a good acquisition for the public trust.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved to approve RPL 10-4-5002, D anond
Creek - Forest Legacy Grant Land Acqui sition.

SENATOR W LKEN obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators Ben Stevens, Hoffrmn and
Therri aul t and Representatives Hawker, Wi t aker, Kohri ng,
Kerttula, and Sanuels voted in favor of the nption. Senat or

Wl ken voted against it. Therefore, the notion passed by a vote
of 8-1.

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.
OTHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS

CHAI R SAMJELS announced that the next order of business would be
the presentation of the Al aska State Veterans Hone Feasibility
St udy.

DONNA LOGAN, Seni or Manager, MDowell G oup, began her testinony
by thanking nenbers of the steering commttee involved with the
study, and then referred to the 146-page docunent, the Al aska
State Veterans Hone Feasibility Study. She noted that in
addition to the MDowel|l G oup, assistance was provided by the
Health Dinmensions Goup and the Arctic Slope Consulting G oup,
I nc. She acknowl edged the inportance of understanding that
within the federal Departnent of Veterans Affairs (VA), there is
interest in noving away from institutionalized care and towards
comunity hone-based care; there is a national trend in the
| ong-term care industry of striving towards maximzing one's
i ndependence for as |long as possible. She reported that a needs
assessnent and a denmands assessnent were conduct ed. Based on
the U S. Census data, a random survey was done in which 450
veterans | ocated throughout the state were contacted; this was a
good denogr aphi ¢ sanpling, she said.

9.4
M5. LOGAN told the commttee that standard nethodol ogy was
applied to determ ne demand. She referred to what the VA calls

"a reliance factor," saying that the VA recognizes that it is
unrealistic to serve all veterans for all levels of care, and

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -19- July 9, 2003



therefore recognizes that about 11.5 percent of the veterans
needing long-term care would receive it in the state veterans
hone. Uilization rates wthin nursing hones and assisted
living homes throughout the state was al so | ooked at in order to
understand where veterans are with regard to being in comunity-
based nursing hones and assisted |iving hones.

IVB. LOGAN indicated that sever al di fferent systens and
perspectives were used to determine and verify the demands.
Also, the nost viable options regarding financial inplications
were considered, which resulted in a range of three options.
She said that one option was developing or building a new,
freestanding veterans hone within the state, whereas another
option was to use the Al aska Pioneers' Hone System in sone way,
and also to | ook at community and hone-based care.

12.0

M5. LOGAN outlined the first option as the conversion of the
Pal mer Pioneers' Honme to a 78-bed state veterans hone. The
necessary renovations, costing approximately $1.5 mllion, could
be shared by the federal and state governnents, and through a
grant process, there would be a 65/35 split between federal and
state governnent. She said that because of natural attrition
due to illness and death, a conservative estimate is that it
woul d take about three years to convert the non-veteran beds to
vet eran beds. She enphasized that no one was advocating for
novi ng people out of the home; rather through natural attrition,
as non-veterans would |eave the facility, those occupants would
be replaced by veterans. She noted that the facility is not
currently operating at nmaxi num capacity.

14.5

M5. LOGAN continued that regarding operating costs, the current
| evel of service and the way the home operates would remain the
sane. The VA does not currently have reinbursenent for
assistant living care, but does for nursing honme care

domciliary care, and for adult daycare. She explained that the
beds won't be designated as nursing honme beds because nursing
hone rei nbursenment won't be avail able; however, the domciliary

rei mbursenent wll be available for those beds, although
currently, there is no per diem available for assistant |iving
care. There will be about $27 per day of additional revenue

comng into the systemfromthe VA to pay for domciliary care,
which is really an assisted living level of care. She clarified
that there is no assisted living per diem reinbursenent; there

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 20- July 9, 2003



is eligibility only for the domciliary reinbursenent, even
t hough the level of care being offered would be that of assisted
living care.

16.5

M5. LOGAN estimated that the state would save about $250, 000 per
year once the system was operable, because of additional
revenues from the federal governnment, and there would also be
sonme reduction of overhead costs due to the rise in occupancy
| evel ; there would be a net gain to the state, from conversion

Regarding the state's recouping its capital investnent, she said

of the $1.5 million in renovations of the Palmer facility, the
state's portion of roughly $400,000 could be recouped in 2.1
years, after the hone was operable. She said that regarding

pros and cons, ideally the hone should be placed in Anchorage
because that's where the bulk of veterans |ive; however, Pal ner
is wthin a 50-mle radius of Anchorage and the facility is
relatively new and has been recently renovat ed.

CHAIR SAMUELS asked if there were different paraneters for
different types of hones.

M5. LOGAN responded that the VA has a lot of regulations
regardi ng conmon space, room size, and office space. After a
prelimnary assessnent, the Palnmer facility has been determ ned
to be in good shape; for exanple, the roons are of adequate
si ze. She said that renovations of comon space nmay be
necessary, but since it is currently an 82-bed facility, there
are extra roons that can be converted.

19.0

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if, simlar to contributing to
construction costs, the VA would contribute 65 percent if the
state were to purchase a facility in the private sector

M5. LOGAN answered, "Yes, they would."

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if, since the facility is already
owned, there would be a 65 percent reinbursenent for the cost of
that facility.

M5. LOGAN answered, "No, only for the renovation costs.”

19.8

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -21- July 9, 2003



M5. LOGAN told the commttee that because the |argest nunber of
veterans are |located in the Anchorage and Fairbanks areas, the
second option involves renovating two Al aska Pioneers' Hones in
those areas of greatest need so that veterans could stay there.
Converting all of the Al aska Pioneers' Honmes was found to be
cost-prohibitive and cunbersonme, especially in light of the
condition of honmes such as the hone in Sitka, and also given
that the nunber of veterans in sone of those areas would be
quite small. The second option designhates 60 beds in the
Anchorage Pioneers' Honme and 19 beds in the Fairbanks Pioneers

Hone. Currently, there are 17 veteran beds in Fairbanks, so the
demand is nmet in that conmunity. I n Anchorage, through natura

attrition, a conservative estimate is that it would take about
one and one-half years for the non-veteran beds to be filled
W th veterans.

M5. LOGAN testified that all of specific VA regulations would
need to be net in both facilities, and the construction costs
are estimated at $5.3 nmillion. Utimately, after the facilities
are operable, there would be a net gain of $250,000 to the state
due to VA financing fromthe per diem and also due to increased
efficiency because occupancy would be increasing in the
Anchorage facility and possibly the Fairbanks facility as well.
She said that an obvious advantage to this option is that

"you're where the vets are.” However, because the Fairbanks
Pi oneers' Honme is popular, there is a concern that the facility
won't be as accessible to non-veterans. She said that option

two is simlar to option one, but the homes would be a m xture
of Pioneers' and veterans hones.

23.7

SENATOR W LKEN asked about the placing of the two popul ations
toget her, which was had been | ooked into several years ago.

M5. LOGAN replied that no one is advocating for segregating the
veterans throughout the hones. She said that according to the
survey, vet er ans, |ike other people, don't want to Dbe
segregated, but would rather mx wth others. She pointed out
that even if a wing were designated as a veteran w ng, the other
portions of the facility would still need to neet the VA
requirenents for a state veterans hone.

CHAIR SAMJELS noted that the $5.3 million in conversion costs
woul d not result in there being a designated wing for veterans.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -22- July 9, 2003



M5. LOGAN confirnmed this to be correct, saying that this would
involve offering the level and breadth of care available in the
Al aska Pioneers' Hone System which is pretty high.

25.0

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that the last thing desired was to pit
one group of seniors against each other, in conpetition for
scarce nonies. The original concept of funding a veterans hone
was to meke nore beds available for senior veterans and
therefore to |eave at |east the sane nunber, if not nore, beds
avai l abl e for non-veteran seniors. He asked if an analysis had
been done on the inpacts of taking beds away from the non-
vet eran popul ati on.

M5. LOGAN said that occupancy inpacts have been [studied] for
nur si ng homes, Pioneers' Honmes, and assisted |living homes.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if an assessnment had been done
regarding the costs involved with adding spaces for veterans
while | eaving the sane nunber of non-veteran roons available for
non- vet er ans.

M5. LOGAN replied that this had been factored into the overall
demand, knowing that there is currently excess capacity in the
Al aska Pioneers' Hone System and the nursing home system within
the state. She nmentioned that since the state already provides
care for veterans in the Alaska Pioneers' Hone System the
di scussion pertains to increasing the nunber of veterans
designated within a certain facility. She said that perhaps
there woul d be a cost savings because the excess capacity in the
Pi oneers' or nursing honmes could be filled.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA referred to option two and asked if the
$250,000 in savings could be used to hold the non-veterans'
popul ati on nunber of beds harm ess, and al so add new spaces for
veteran seniors.

M5. LOGAN said that although the exact nunber is not known,
because of there being excess capacity, the answer is "yes" to
the question of whether the non-veteran population would still
have access if the nunber of beds in the Al aska Pioneers' Hone
System was not increased, but 60 or 79 beds were designated for
vet er ans. She then explained that there is a conplicating
factor due to there being several levels of care available in
the Al aska Pioneers' Hone System She said that there is a |ot
of demand for beds that have a nursing honme |evel of care, while

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -23- July 9, 2003



occupancy is available at the lower level of care, the basic
| evel .

28.0

REPRESENTATI VE GARA referred to page 36 [Al aska State Veterans
Honme Feasibility Study], which reads in part, "the non-veteran
popul ation [in the Pioneers' Hone is] largely unaffected,” and
comented that he hoped that the non-veteran popul ation could be
conpletely rather than "largely" wunaffected by the changes
proposed in the second option.

M5. LOGAN said the degree to which that population would be
affected is relatively nomnal because of there being excess
capacity currently available, and also because of the |evel of
care that's needed within the Al aska Pioneers' Honme System
itself.

28.5

JOHN VOWELL, Director, Division of Alaska Longevity Prograns,
Department of Health and Social Services, testified that
veterans are on the waiting list "just |ike anyone else" and
cone into the system based upon the hone they have chosen and
upon the level of care needed. Currently, the avail able beds
within the system are what is ~considered by the VA
[domiciliary] care, partially because of the developnent of
assistant living and other alternatives within the comunity.
He said that he didn't think that the demand for those beds by
non-vet erans woul d be changing, so using those beds, designated
for veterans, should not affect a non-veteran's ability to get
into the hone.

30.2

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA commented that of the veterans included
in the poll, their nunber-one wsh was to stay in their own
comunity.

M5. LOGAN confirnmed this was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked about the financial breakdown of a
program that was nore community oriented, and about the national
PACE [Prograns of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly] program
She questioned whether, instead of centralizing, if it would be
preferable to keep veterans in their own comunities. She said
her concern pertained to people on the waiting list for the

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 24- July 9, 2003



Pal ner Pioneers' Hone as well as for those seniors wanting to go
into that hone, should it becane a veterans hone. She comrented
that she thought the three-year approximation to be inaccurate
because of seniors who have already been living there for quite
a while, in addition to others who m ght be com ng in.

M5. LOGAN said that if the Palnmer Pioneers' Honme were converted
to a veterans hone, the only non-veterans able to live there
woul d be spouses or relatives of veterans. She confirned that
there would be a displacenent of others wanting to go to that
hone, but said that there would be space and occupancy avail abl e
i n Anchor age. She said that comrunity-based prograns have been
| ooked into, noting that the VA currently operates within the
state by providing care for veterans through conmmunity-based
private providers. She enphasized that these [three] options
are not in lieu of current VA prograns, but rather nake
addi ti onal services and options avail able to veterans.

32.3

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the hone-based and community
servi ces woul d be conti nued.

M5. LOGAN replied, "Absolutely." She referred to a section in
the report reflecting the desire of the federal Departnent of
Veterans Affairs to keep services in community-based prograns
through private providers and honme care, when possible. She
confirmed that non-veterans who were not relatives of veterans
but who wanted to live at the Palner Pioneers' Hone would need
to go el sewhere. She clarified that up to 25 percent of the
beds could be occupied by non-veterans but those people would
need to neet the regulation of being related to a veteran.

33.5
M5. LOGAN told the committee that the nunber of beds required by

the VA to receive grants is determned according to regulation
and is not an arbitrary nunber; Alaska has been allocated 79

beds. If nore beds are desired, the state would need to come up
with additional funding or with a good argunent as to why the
federal government should fund nore than that anount. She

opined that the anmpbunt of 79 was close to the demand estinate,
so it appeared to be a good nunber.

SENATOR THERRI AULT comrented that the survey helped to gauge

what kind of care was wanted and how it was to be delivered, as
desired by the veterans. He noted that in response to sone

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -25- July 9, 2003



pressure fromthe [legislative] mnority to "build a hone," the
study points to the concern of neeting veteran demands in a way
that is affordable by the state.

35.6

M5. LOGAN said that the third option involves the establishnment
of a freestanding facility. She said that there is sufficient
demand wthin the Anchorage nmarket to sustain a hone; however

it needs to be understood that when the demand is being talked
about, there is a "bubble" pertaining to aging veterans, which
wi |l peak around the year 2015 to 2020. The concept behind the
third option is to build a 60-bed facility to service the
veteran community, with the reconmendation that 30 beds woul d be
nursing honme and 30 (indisc.). An attractive elenment to this
option would be having a new facility for veterans, a centra

| ocation, and for that location to be in the community with the
| ar gest veteran popul ation. A di sadvantage, she said, is that

the facility would have about a 40-year |ifespan, but the
"bubbl e would have already passed, possibly |leaving the
question of how to fill those beds. She stated that the

construction costs to build a new facility were estinated at
$9.4 million and that there would be no payback for the state's
investment due to additional operating expenses of about $2.8
mllion per year because of adding beds to the state system at
a nursing hone | evel of care.

CHAI R SAMUELS asked if the VA precludes the state from filling
those beds with ot her people once the bubbl e passes.

V. LOGAN responded, "Who knows what happens wth the
regulations in the years to cone." She noted that the
regul ations allow for 25 percent of the beds to go to non-
veterans, but specify that the population needs to be related to
vet er ans.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if that 25 percent going to non-
vet erans woul d not receive VA funding.

M5. LOGAN said this was correct. She reiterated that those beds
could only go to relatives of veterans, such as spouses, and
that there mght be federal funding available, but it wouldn't
be VA funding.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked about the idea of upgrading 60 roons
in the Anchorage Pioneers' Hone to neet VA standards, and asked,

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 26- July 9, 2003



if those were considered as veteran roons under federal | aw,
whet her those roons couldn't be given to non-veterans.

M5. LOGAN confirmed that this was correct.
40. 4

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested that a conparison be nmade anong
the three proposed options, addressing the nunber of veteran and
non-veteran beds currently being filled, and also indicating how
many veteran and non-veteran beds will be filled.

TAPE 03-6, SIDE B
0.0

SENATOR BEN STEVENS commented that nursing home occupancy by
region is 85 percent, whereas Pioneers' Home occupancy is 80
percent, so the assunption is that "you'll be higher than you
al ready are.”

MS. LOGAN said that was correct "because the veterans would fil
t hose beds."

SENATOR BEN STEVENS nentioned that the given statistics include
vet eran occupancy, which is 15 percent in the nursing hones and
16 percent in the Pioneers' Hones, so vacancy exists in both
cat egori es.

M5. LOGAN said that the demand assessnent showed that a 90
percent occupancy for options one and two was a reasonable
expectation, with the recognition that things would change after
t he year 2020.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN told the commttee that although he was not
a nmenber of the [legislative] mnority, his nessage was, "Build
a hone, build a hone, build a honme.” He said the needs of the
non-veterans need to be considered as well as those of veterans.
He stated that he was speaking as the chairnman of the [House
Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs], as soneone
who has retired fromthe United States Air Force, as a Vietnam
veteran, and as an ol der person; he said he wanted to point out
that the privilege of today' s debate was possible because of
what veterans have fought for and have been wounded for, and
therefore a great debt of honor is owed to the veterans.
Factors other than dollars and cents need to be considered, he
sai d.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -27- July 9, 2003



CHAIR SAMJELS said that in the interest of tinme, questions
shoul d be focused towards the survey rather than addressing the
broader policy issues at this tine.

4.4

SENATOR BEN STEVENS referred to Tables 7, 8, 9, 10, and 12 on
pages 20-26 [Alaska State Veterans Honme Feasibility Study],
specifically to page 20, "Nursing Hone OCccupancy Trends by
Regi on" and asked if these nursing honmes were privately managed.

MS. LOGAN responded that these 15 nursing hones were currently
in Alaska, and sone of which were associated with community
hospi tal s.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS referred to an anmount of $550,000 and asked
why there was such a dramatic junmp from"'01 to '02."

M5. LOGAN replied that she didn’t' know the specific answer.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked for an answer to that question at a
later time, and then confirned that Table 12 was a summary. He
referred to Appendix 1V, page 8, a spreadsheet of private
assisted living facilities indicating an additional [952] beds
and asked if this was in addition to the nunbers already seen.

M5. LOGAN said this anmpbunt was factored into the demand, but was
not factored into the Pioneers' denmand because there was no way
to neasure the nunber of veterans that were currently in the 200
facilities.

6.8
SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if VA paynments qualify in those hones.

M5. LOGAN responded that there is a pilot programin which, from
this long list, nine assisted living facilities participate in
t he program She said that there is no policy with the VA and
there is not an assisted living reinbursement in the United
St at es.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if there was any table coinciding with
Appendi x IV regardi ng the occupancy rate of the 952 beds.

M5. LOGAN said she didn't believe so, saying that the focus was

on the Pioneers' Honmes' assisted-living occupancy. She noted
that assisted living isn't regulated in the sane way as the

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 28- July 9, 2003



nursing honme beds, and her wunderstanding is that even the
Division of Senior Services doesn't know the answer to the
gquestion, "O your four beds, are three filled?"

SENATOR BEN STEVENS referred to page 23, "Levels of Care - Basic
Assi stant Living," and asked if this was provided for by the VA

M5. LOGAN said that it wasn't and explained that this referred
to levels of care <currently available wthin the Alaska
Pi oneers' Hone System

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked whether, if he were a veteran living

under basic assistant living classification then he wouldn't
qual ify.

M5. LOGAN said this was correct unless this was a state veterans
hone, which currently it is not. She mentioned survey results
indicating that a core of about 15 percent of veterans voted,
regardl ess of cost or need, to "build a hone." She reported

that generally, what was heard was the veterans' desire to stay
wWithin their community; they want choices, they don't want to be
forced into a state veterans home, and they expressed interest
in conmunity-based prograns. She said that veterans are aware
of fiscal constraints and are interested in | ow cost
alternatives to a state veterans hone.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that nobody, whether veteran or
non-veteran, wants to go to a nursing hone, and that he was not
surprised by the survey.

M5. LOGAN offered that the survey provided insight into how
veterans are thinking about these issues.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the following question had been
i ncor por at ed: "Would you support this if it resulted in a
decrease in the nunber of beds available for non-veteran
seni ors?"

MS5. LOGAN replied that this question had not been asked.

12.5

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if people on the waiting list for
the Pioneers' Home or if people in Pioneers' Hones had been
surveyed.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -29- July 9, 2003



M5. LOGAN replied that surveying veterans in Pioneers' Hones was
conplicated because a nunber of those residents are under
guardi an care, or have denentia, and so forth. Adm ni strators
of those facilities, rather than residents, had been contacted.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked whether non-veterans within the
Pi oneers' Hones were surveyed.

M5. LOGAN replied that non-veterans within those facilities had
not been contact ed.

CHAI R SAMJELS t hanked Ms. Logan for her work, and suggested that
she return to a future [Joint Commttee on Legislative Budget
and Audit] neeting after the commttee had tinme to formulate
addi ti onal questions.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved that the Al aska State Veterans Hone
Feasibility Study, prepared for the Alaska State Legislature,
Joint Committee on Legislative Budget and Audit, be nade
available to the public at this tine.

CHAI R SAMUELS asked if there were any objections. There being
none, it was so ordered.

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.

AUDI T REQUESTS
14.9

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative Audit
Al aska State Legislature, referred to the second audit request
on the agenda, a review of Al aska's sunset process, requested by
Chair Sanuel s. She said this was a request to review Al aska's
"sunset laws," which currently require a periodic review of
vari ous boards and comm ssions to determne if the entity should
remain in existence.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved that the conmittee approve the
aut hori zation for the [review of Al aska's sunset process].

CHAI R SAMUELS asked whether there were any objections. There
bei ng none, it was so ordered.

16.5

MS. DAVI DSON continued that the next audit request, from Senator
Guess, was a review of state residency requirenents. She said

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 30- July 9, 2003



this involved several i ssues such as exenptions, whether
educational, nmedical, or mlitary.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved that the commttee approve this
request for the [review of state residency requirenents].

CHAIR SAMUJELS asked whether there were any objections. There
bei ng none, it was so ordered.

CHAI R SAMJELS passed the gavel to Representative Hawker due to a
conflict relating to the next item of business.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER recogni zed Chair Sanuel s' declaration of a
conflict of interest and took the gavel.

18. 2

M5. DAVIDSON explained that Senator WIken's request was to
eval uate the travel procurenent process.

SENATOR W LKEN expl ained that the state buys about $50 nillion
in travel each year, or at least did so in FY 2000, and the

notion is that a central travel office will be established and
state government wll becone its own travel agent, thereby
essentially dealing private travel agencies out of their ability
to book state travel. Senator WIken said he wanted to find out
why this was being done, what the business plan was, and why
public government was replacing the private sector. He

di stributed a nenorandum dated June 20, 2003, from Kim Garnero,
Division of Finance, to Ray Matiashowski, Deputy Conmm ssioner,
Department of Adm nistration. He referred to pages 3 and 4
wherein there is nention of "underenployed” travel agents, and
he said this was a euphem sm for people in the industry who are
i n danger of losing their jobs.

23.5

SALLY HUNTLEY, Omner and Manager, Frontier Travel Inc., said her
agency has been a provider of travel arrangenents for the state
since 1982, and has designed systens based on the state's
requirenents for travel. She said that when agents are used,
the conpetition has kept the rates down for state travel and
that a problem with using an online product such as "EasyBiz" is
that it doesn't allow for conpetitive information. In a market
such as Fairbanks, for exanple, a small provider such as
Frontier Flying Service averages $100 reductions per ticket, but
that provider won't be available to state enpl oyees because it,

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -31- July 9, 2003



like PenAir or Era Aviation, Inc., is not available on EasyBiz.
Also, the travel agency can book  hotel, car, and air
reservations nore quickly than others who are not famliar with
the systens.

26.5

SENATOR HOFFMAN said he had owned a travel agency for 15 years,
and i nqui red about the anmount of the current fees.

MS. HUNTLEY replied that every agency establishes its own fees,
and an agency can charge up to $33 for a state fee.

CHAI R SAMJELS commented that perhaps that question pertained to
the amount of the comm ssion paid by the airlines, which is
zero.

SENATOR W LKEN said his concern was that a regular audit would
take 6 to 12 nonths, during which tinme travel agents would | ose
their jobs. He wondered if there was sone way to address this
i ssue wthout doing a full audit.

27.8

M5. DAVIDSON responded that additional information could be
provided but it wouldn't produce the recommendati ons provi ded by
a full audit. She said that the use of EasyBiz is a separate
gquestion from that of the establishment of a central travel
office. She said another question is the efficient use of staff
resources, Vvis-a-vis a travel agent's fee, and that an
addi tional question is whether EasyBiz directs state agencies to
particul ar vendors over other vendors. Ms. Davidson said she
could gather prelimnary information regarding where the bul k of
state travel dollars are being spent and then share that
information with the [Joint Conmttee on Legislative Budget and
Audi t]. She added that she suspects that decisions are still
being made regarding the establishment of the central travel
of fice.

31.3
SENATOR W LKEN sai d he hoped the brakes would be applied until a
busi ness plan and further analysis were done and that he would

like to find an answer to the question, "Wat is the benefit of
a central travel office?"

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -32- July 9, 2003



V5. DAVI DSON said she would draft a letter to the adm nistration
so that the expected benefits could be put in witing.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER nentioned that ultimately this issue woul d
beconme a budget request, saying that one approach would be to
address it through a subcommttee of one of the finance
comm ttees.

SENATOR W LKEN noved that the commttee authorize the auditor to
wite a letter to the governor and to the adm nistration, asking
guestions pertaining to the travel procurenent process, and to
have the letter be approved by [Vice Chair Therriault's office].
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if M. Davidson had seen the letter
[ menmor andum dat ed June 20, 2003] that had been referenced during
t he neeti ng.

V5. DAVI DSON confirmed that she had [seen the nenoranduni.
SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if the State Finance Oficer

Association's work group had the authority to inplenment or
create procurenment procedures.

M5. DAVIDSON said no. She stated that the association is
responsible for instituting i nt er nal controls t hat are
procedure-oriented but 1is not typically enpowered to set

regul ation or to make any key deci sions.
REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER turned the gavel back to Chair Sanuels.
36.5

M5. DAVIDSON asked if the commttee was going to take up
approval of the |ease space for the [Division of Legislative
Audit] office in Anchorage at this neeting.

CHAI R SAMUELS responded that this would be added to the agenda.
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

V5. DAVIDSON testified that the current |ease for the Anchorage
office of the Division of Legislative Audit expires on Novenber
30, 200s. The request is for the approval of the solicitation
and award of a contract for |ease space. She told the commttee
that the process falls under limted conpetitive procurenent; a
space between 1,400 to 1,800 square feet costing under $50, 000

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 33- July 9, 2003



is desired. She explained that their current space has been
occupied for nore than 10 years and they would |ike to continue
in that space, but the costs have gone up. She said that the
desire is for an RFP [request for proposals] to be distributed
to brokers, and noted that the division is looking for Cass B
space, and will therefore not be conpeting with the Legislative
Affairs Agency's desire for space, either in size or in class.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if there were seven or five, or how
many classifications were being included in the evaluation
criteria.

M5. DAVIDSON said this hadn't quite been yet decided, but she
thought it would be closer to five. She said the desire was to
be centrally located, in md-town, and also to be in a well-
secured buil ding because 90 percent of the docunments are worKking
papers that are confidential, by |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noved to approve the request by the
| egi slative auditor to issue an RFP for the space as outlined in
t he menmorandum of July 7, 2003.

CHAI R SAMUELS asked if there was any objection. There being
none, it was so ordered.

CHAIR SAMUELS announced that the agenda item "Yuri Mrgan -
Denal i Conm ssion update,” would be noved to the next neeting.

40. 7
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the Joint

Comm ttee on Legislative Budget and Audit neeting was adjourned
at approximately 6:00 p. m

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 34- July 9, 2003



